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The year ended June 2013 has again been a challenging year for junior resources companies including
Argo Exploration Ltd (‘Argo’). On January 9, 2013 Mount Isa Mines Limited (‘Xstrata Copper’), in
accordance with the Exploration Farm-in and Joint Venture Agreement formally withdrew from the Intercept
Hill Joint Venture Agreement having met all minimum expenditures necessary to withdraw from the Joint
Venture during the Earn-in Period. Xstrata Copper contributed $2,086,267 to exploration within EL4164,
Intercept Hill.
Xstrata’s review and analysis of the drilling results from the Oak Dam South and Winjabbie East Prospects
on EL4164 determined that these prospects were unlikely to host an economic ore deposit of sufficient size
and scale to meet the strategic requirements of a company of their size. Whilst Argo believes that EL4164
had some remaining exploration potential, the depth, geology and other characteristics of the asset would
require material additional capital to further exploit. Given the lack of commercial success by both Argo and
Xstrata Copper to date, coupled with the lack of available capital, the company determined that it was in the
best interests of shareholders not to commit further significant funds to high risk exploration of EL4164. The
Board has reviewed the carrying amount of each of the projects and as previously advised, has also written
down the value of Intercept Hill Project. The Toondulya Project was also written down.
On March 18, 2013, Argo announced the resignation of Dr Hugh Herbert as Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company after seven years of service to the Board. During the March Quarter, Mr Andrew
Van Der Zwan was appointed as a Director and appointed Executive Director in June 2013.
Concurrent with the board and management changes, Argo reviewed its strategy in light of prevailing
market conditions. The Company’s immediate focus was to preserve cash reserves and to undertake a
strategic review of its asset portfolio and expenditure commitments with the objective of determining the
optimum strategy to maximise shareholder value, given the present asset mix and capital position. This
strategic review was undertaken after giving due consideration to prevailing market conditions, geological
characteristics, estimated risk/return profiles, sunk costs, expected capital requirements, project timelines,
and expected dilution implications for ordinary shareholders.
Consequently, in July 2013 Argo advised that the exploration licences EL4164 (Intercept Hill) and EL4284
(Toondulya), were relinquished by the company. This decision was made in the context of the
aforementioned factors, coupled with the diminished market appetite for greenfields exploration risk. These
exploration licences carried minimum capital expenditure requirements, which would have impacted the
company in the short to medium term. Continued evaluation and exploration on these exploration licences
would have required material additional capital, which in the present environment could be highly dilutive to
existing shareholders.
Corporate Strategy
Argo’s strategy is to create value for shareholders through the exploration, investment and exploitation of
natural resource projects. Given Argo’s lack of capital, low market capitalisation and in the context of very
difficult equity market conditions for junior exploration companies, Argo undertook a comprehensive
strategic review of its assets.
Prior to the strategic review, Argo had three primary assets; Intercept Hill (EL4164), Toondoolya (EL4284)
and a 6.83% shareholding interest in Pantheon Resources plc (‘Pantheon’).
Both EL4164 and EL4284 were greenfields exploration targets in South Australia, and both requiring
material additional capital to meaningfully exploit. In the case of EL4164, Xstrata Copper’s recent
withdrawal from the project at a significant financial loss to that company, effectively made any possible
joint venture deal or sale with another company increasingly difficult to achieve. EL4164 is a capitalintensive prospect, and whilst the directors believe genuine further exploration potential remains, any
further work on this project by Argo, would have been extremely dilutive for all shareholders. Toondoolya
(EL4284) is an early stage exploration project also requiring substantial capital to meaningfully test. Once
again, it was believed that this would have been highly dilutive to existing shareholders to fund through
equity raisings. Both of these exploration licences had minimum capital expenditure requirements.
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Argo’s investment in Pantheon however was considered by the directors to represent a lower risk and later
stage natural resource project, requiring no further capital from Argo and offering potential for material
value accretion in the short to medium term. It was concluded that it was in the best interests of
shareholders to retain this investment rather than to liquidate it and reapply the proceeds to EL4164 and/or
EL4284.
The value of Argo’s investment in Pantheon was $2,118,906 at an exchange rate of 0.6072 as of 30 June
2013. Pantheon has announced that JV discussions with new parties are underway and upon the
conclusion of these it is expected that drilling of the prospect should occur soon thereafter. It is not
unreasonable to expect this to occur in late 2013. The Pantheon JV has conducted an extensive geological
study on the acreage, greatly enhancing the understanding of the play and resulting in a reduced risk
profile and an increase in the potential for reserves. Argo has carefully assessed the public information and
believes there to be potential for material value accretion in the medium term. As part of its strategic
review the Board did consider the option of selling some or all of its shareholding in Pantheon to further
fund EL4164 and EL4284, however took the view that selling out of a later stage project with a lower
assessed risk profile and potential for near term value growth, to apply those funds to higher risk green
fields exploration prospects was not the most prudent use of shareholder funds at the present time. Should
the Pantheon JV commence drilling and enjoy some success, then this has the potential to provide material
capital appreciation for Argo shareholders, and provide the company with greater access to future capital to
deploy to new possible opportunities if required.
The strategic review has resulted in material and significant cost reductions for the company.
PANTHEON RESOURCES PLC (Argo 6.83% shareholder)
At Pantheon’s AGM held in December 2012, the Managing Director of Vision Gas Resources LLC
(“Vision”), made a presentation on the Tyler County Project for which Vision is the operator with a 75%
interest. During this talk and the ensuing discussion, he expressed his belief that the extensive geological
study recently undertaken had substantially increased reserve potential and lowered the geological risk of
the Joint Venture (“JV”) acreage in which Pantheon holds a 25% working interest. He indicated that that the
forthcoming Kara Farms #1H (“KF#1H”) well could commence drilling during first quarter 2013 but stated
that this intention was dependent the completion of the restructuring of the JV and the availability of a
suitable rig.
Over recent months the restructuring has moved forward positively with discussions reported to be at an
advanced stage despite having taken longer than anticipated. This restructuring is not expected to impact
upon Pantheon’s 25% interest in the Tyler County Project. These negotiations are by nature complex, with
extensive geological and geophysical due diligence requirements, and there can be no guarantee as to the
timing or outcome of any decision. Once these negotiations are finalised however, the intention is to
commit to a rig and then subsequently drill the KFH#1 well soon thereafter.
Over the past year, circumstances have moved in the JV’s favour in terms of rig rates, drilling costs and
commodity prices and rig availability is not expected to be a problem.
KF#1H is considered by the operator of the Pantheon joint venture (Pantheon 25% working interest), to be
an appraisal well targeting, in the first instance, a liquids-rich Woodbine Sandstone reservoir underlying the
extensive gas-rich Austin Chalk formation. KF#1H will offset an existing producing well on the JV acreage.
Much preparatory work and analysis has been undertaken by the JV. Highlights include:
1. Completion of a comprehensive two plus year analysis, in conjunction with the Bureau of Economic
Geology at the University of Texas at Austin, aimed at decoding the geophysical expression of
productive Woodbine by analyzing data from 2,500 wells, over 2,600 miles of 2D seismic and the
acquisition of 3D seismic over producing Woodbine. The operator believes this has resulted in a
lowered risk profile of the play;
2. The operator believes that the Woodbine underlying JV acreage appears analogous to the nearby Polk
County Double A Wells field. Estimated production from the Double A Wells field to date is circa 20
million barrels of condensate and 415 bcf of natural gas to date;
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3. The JV has concluded that its acreage may have the potential to contain a similar size field;
4. If confirmed to be present, the operator believes there could be potential for development of up to 17
horizontal or up to 50 vertical wells to drain the Woodbine field;
5. The JV’s Woodbine target is a gas condensate play. This provides some correlation to the oil price as
the associated liquids usually trade at par or a premium to the crude oil price; and
6. The operator has estimated that in a success case, gross NPV10, on a mean reserve case, is
estimated to be <US$100 million per vertical Woodbine well and <US$200 million per horizontal well
using a US$100 per barrel constant price for crude oil and a constant US$4.50 per mmBTU for natural
gas.
While disappointed with the delays, the Board believes that this has in no way diminished the overall
positive outlook for the Pantheon investment. The joint venture acreage offers tremendous exposure to the
burgeoning US domestic oil/gas resources sector, with potential to deliver substantial shareholder value
once the drilling program commences, particularly given the operator’s increased confidence in the liquidsrich Woodbine zone underlying Joint Venture acreage in Tyler County, East Texas and possibility for 4Q
2013 commencement of drilling.
The Board continue to review and evaluate potential corporate opportunities in the natural resource sector
and is of the view that present market conditions will provide increased opportunities going forward at more
sensible valuations than seen in recent years. The recent board changes bring a new and exciting vision
for the Company’s future.
In conclusion, I wish to thank you, the Company’s shareholders, for your continued support.

Andrew Van Der Zwan
Executive Director
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY
INTERCEPT HILL EL4164 (Argo-Xstrata Copper Joint Venture till Q1 2013)
Project Evaluation
Xstrata Copper has concluded, based on drilling results and geophysical assessment, that the Oak Dam
South and Winjabbie East prospects within EL4164 are unlikely to host medium to high-grade
mineralization of reasonable economic tonnages to be materially relevant to a company the size of Xstrata.
Xstrata Copper further concludes that there are no accessible targets of suitable size, to meet its strategic
requirements, remaining to be tested.
Accordingly, Xstrata Copper, having met all minimum expenditures necessary to withdraw from the Joint
Venture during the Earn-in Period, has given 30 days’ notice, commencing 9th January 2013, of withdrawal
from the Agreement. Xstrata Copper contributed $2,086,267 to exploration within EL4164, Intercept Hill
during the Earn-in period.
A detailed description of the works carried out by Xstrata on EL4164 can be reviewed in Argo’s
quarterly reports.
TOONDULYA EL4284 (Argo 100%)
No new field-based activities were undertaken during the year.
Subsequent Events
As described above, Argo Exploration Ltd (‘Argo’) advised in July 2013 that Intercept Hill EL4164, and
Toondulya EL4284 have now been relinquished by the company.
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The directors present their report, together with the financial statements, on the consolidated entity (referred to
hereafter as the 'consolidated entity') consisting of Argo Exploration Limited (referred to hereafter as the 'company' or
'parent entity') and the entities it controlled for the year ended 30 June 2013.
Directors
The following persons were directors of Argo Exploration Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the
date of this report, unless otherwise stated:
Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan (appointed 19 March 2013)
Mr Justin Hondris
Mr Christopher Martin (appointed 26 February 2013)
Dr Hugh Herbert (resigned 19 March 2013)
Ms Meredith Bird (resigned 26 February 2013)
Principal activities
During the financial year the principal activities of the consolidated entity consisted of exploration and development of
mineral resources emphasising copper, gold and uranium.
Dividends
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.
Review of operations
The loss for the consolidated entity after providing for income tax amounted to $7,778,197 (30 June 2012:
$2,267,095).
The net assets of the consolidated entity decreased by $7,518,070 to $2,267,940 as at 30 June 2013 (2012:
$9,786,010). The major movements were due to the relinquishment of exploration licenses Intercept Hill EL4164 and
Toondulya EL4284, which resulted in the write-off of exploration assets in respect of these projects.
The consolidated entity's working capital, being current assets less current liabilities increased by $1,038,731 to
$2,267,183 (2012: $1,228,452).
Significant changes in the state of affairs
On 2 January 2013, the company issued 30,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company at an issue price of
$0.009 (0.9 cents) per share raising $270,000.
There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the financial year.
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
On 3 July 2013, 41,000,000 Unlisted Performance Rights were issued to Directors and consultants of the Company
under the condition of share price hurdles in accordance with the Performance rights terms, as approved at the
general meeting of shareholders on 13 June 2013.
On 19 July 2013 the Company advised that exploration licence areas; Intercept Hill EL4164, and Toondulya EL4284
have now been relinquished by the Company.
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2013 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect the consolidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in
future financial years.
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Likely developments and expected results of operations
The consolidated entity will continue to explore mineral resource opportunities and funding opportunities in the future
as well as continuing to manage its investment in Pantheon Resources PLC to add value.
Information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of operations
have not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable
prejudice to the consolidated entity.
Environmental regulation
The consolidated entity hold participating interests in a number of mining and explorations tenements. The various
authorities granting such tenements require the tenement holder to comply with the terms of the grant of the tenement
and all directions given to it under those terms of the tenement. There have been no known breaches of the tenement
conditions, and no such breaches have been notified by any government agency during the year ended 30 June 2012.

Information on directors
Name:
Title:
Qualifications:
Experience and expertise:
Other current directorships:
Former directorships (in the
last 3 years):
Special responsibilities:
Interests in shares:
Interests in options:
Interests in rights:

Name:
Title:
Qualifications:
Experience and expertise:

Mr Christopher Martin
Non-Executive Director (appointed 26 February 2013)
BBus, Bank & Finance
Mr Martin has a Bachelor of Business (Banking & Finance), and over 15 years
experience in the equities markets. He has acted as an independent Consultant to
Argo Exploration Ltd since its inception.
Nil
Nil
Member of the Audit Committee
10,820,000 ordinary shares
Nil
2,000,000 performance rights (Class A)
2,000,000 performance rights (Class B)
3,000,000 performance rights (Class C)
3,000,000 performance rights (Class D)
Mr Justin Hondris
Non-Executive Director
BBus, ASIA
Justin Hondris brings over 20 years business experience in international capital
markets, venture capital investment and analysis, institutional stockbroking and
corporate advisory both in Australia and Europe. He is a partner in a Private Equity
Fund management company and is a director of Pantheon Resources PLC (AIM
listed).
He holds a Bachelor of Business and previously qualified as a chartered accountant
and an Associate of the Securities Institute of Australia, and is also a past member of
Chartered Secretaries Australia.

Other current directorships:
Former directorships (in the
last 3 years):
Special responsibilities:
Interests in shares:
Interests in options:
Interests in rights:

Pantheon Resources Plc, Executive Director
Nil
Chair of Audit Committee
3,400,000 ordinary shares
None
2,000,000 performance rights (Class A)
2,000,000 performance rights (Class B)
3,000,000 performance rights (Class C)
3,000,000 performance rights (Class D)
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Name:
Title:
Qualifications:
Experience and expertise:

Other current directorships:
Former directorships (in the
last 3 years):
Special responsibilities:
Interests in shares:
Interests in options:
Interests in rights:

Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan
Executive Director (appointed 19 March 2013)
BA Chemical Engineering (with Honours)
Andrew has 27 years' engineering and commercial experience, both locally and
internationally. He was a Non-Executive Director of Gulfx Ltd for 2 years, Managing
Director of MRG Metals for 2 years and remains on the Board of MRG today. He was
employed in various senior positions within the worldwide operations of Exxon Mobil
for 18 years.
MRG Metals Limited
Nil
5,000,000 ordinary shares
None
2,000,000 performance rights (Class A)
2,000,000 performance rights (Class B)
3,000,000 performance rights (Class C)
3,000,000 performance rights (Class D)

'Other current directorships' quoted above are current directorships for listed entities only and excludes directorships
in all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated.
'Former directorships (in the last 3 years)' quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for listed entities only
and excludes directorships in all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated.
Company secretaries
Melanie Leydin is joint company secretary and has 22 years’ experience in the accounting profession and is a director
and company secretary for a number of oil and gas, junior mining and exploration entities listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange. She is a Chartered Accountant and a Registered Company Auditor. She graduated from
Swinburne University in 1997, became a Chartered Accountant in 1999 and since February 2000 has been the
principal of chartered accounting firm, Leydin Freyer specialising in outsourced company secretarial and financial
duties for resources and biotechnology sectors.
Justin Mouchacca was appointed joint company secretary on 2 July 2012. Justin graduated from RMIT University
Melbourne in 2008 and became a Chartered Accountant in 2011. His is currently a Company Secretary for a number
of junior mining, oil and gas and mineral exploration companies listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. Justin is
also a Director of Leydin Freyer Corp, which specialises in providing an outsourced company secretarial and financial
service for junior resources and biotechnology sectors.
Meetings of directors
The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors ('the Board') and of each board committee held during
the year ended 30 June 2013, and the number of meetings attended by each director were:

Dr Hugh Herbert
Mr Justin Hondris
Ms Meredith Bird
Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan
Mr Christopher Martin

Full Board
Attended
5
7
4
2
4

Held
6
7
5
2
4

Audit and Risk Committee
Attended
Held
1
1
1
1
1
1
-

Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the relevant
committee.
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Remuneration report (audited)
The remuneration report, which has been audited, outlines the director and executive remuneration arrangements for
the consolidated entity and the company, in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its
Regulations.
The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
A
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
B
Details of remuneration
C
Service agreements
D
Share-based compensation
E
Additional information
A

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The objective of the consolidated entity's and company's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for
performance is competitive and appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with the
achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders, and conforms with the market best
practice for delivery of reward. The Board of Directors ('the Board') ensures that executive reward satisfies the
following key criteria for good reward governance practices:
●
competitiveness and reasonableness
●
acceptability to shareholders
●
alignment of executive compensation
●
transparency
Alignment to shareholders' interests:
has economic profit as a core component of plan design
●
focuses on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, growth in share price, and delivering constant or
increasing return on assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value
●

Alignment to program participants' interests:
rewards capability and experience
●
reflects competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth
●
provides a clear structure for earning rewards
●

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive directors and executive
remunerations are separate.
Non-executive directors remuneration
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the
directors.
ASX listing rules requires that the aggregate non-executive directors remuneration shall be determined periodically by
a general meeting. The most recent determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 16 May 2009, where
the shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of $300,000.
Executive remuneration
The consolidated entity and company aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration based on their
position and responsibility, which is both fixed and variable.
The executive remuneration and reward framework has two components:
base pay and non-monetary benefits
●
other remuneration such as superannuation
●

The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration.
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Consolidated entity performance and link to remuneration
Remuneration packages do not include performance-based components. An individual member of staff's
performance assessment is done by reference to their contribution to the Company's overall operational
achievements. All Directors and Executives hold shares and options in the Company to facilitate goal congruence
between Executives with that of the business and shareholders.
Voting and comments made at the company's 27 November 2012 Annual General Meeting ('AGM')
The company received 80% of 'for' votes in relation to its remuneration report for the year ended 30 June 2012. The
company did not receive any specific feedback at the AGM regarding its remuneration practices.
B

Details of remuneration

Amounts of remuneration
Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of consolidated entity are set out in the following
tables.

2013

Name

Postemployment Termination Share-based
benefits
payments
payments

Short-term benefits
Cash salary
and fees
$

Nonmonetary
$

Bonus
$

Superannuation
$

Termination
payments
$

Equitysettled
$

Total
$

Non-Executive
Directors:
Mr J Hondris*****
Ms M Bird *
Mr C Martin**

Executive Directors:
Dr H Herbert ***
Mr A Van Der Zwan
**

42,000
31,500
54,375

-

-

-

-

-

42,000
31,500
54,375

188,339

-

-

-

74,498

15,555

-

-

-

-

-

15,555

84,000
415,769

-

-

-

74,498

-

84,000
490,267

262,837

Other Key
Management
Personnel:
Ms M Leydin ****
*
**

Ms M Bird resigned as a Director on 26 February 2013.
Mr C Martin was appointed as a Director on 26 February 2013. Part of Mr C Martin's fees comprise $40,000
which was paid to Mr C Martin's consultancy Company for consultancy services prior to joining the Board as a
Director. This amount also includes $3,500 of outstanding Director fees owing to Mr C Martin. Mr A Van Der
Zwan was appointed as a Director on 19 March 2013.
Dr H Herbert resigned as a Director on 19 March 2013. Dr H Herbert's remuneration during the 2013 financial
***
year also consisted of $74,498 in relation to termination payments, the consolidated entity's motor vehicle was
also included as part of his termination. The motor vehicle had a carrying value of $10,962 on disposal and is
included in the total termination fee of $74,498.
**** This amount consists of fees paid to Leydin Freyer Corporate Pty Ltd in respect of Company Secretarial and
accounting services.
***** This amount includes $14,000 of outstanding Director fees owing to Mr J Hondris.
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Short-term benefits

2012

Name

Non-Executive
Directors:
Mr J Hondris
Ms M Bird
Executive
Directors:
Dr H Herbert
Other Key
Management
Personnel:
Ms M Leydin *

Postemployment
benefits

Cash salary
and fees
$

Bonus
$

Nonmonetary
$

Superannuation
$

Long-term
benefits

Share-based
payments

$

Equitysettled
$

Total
$

36,000
36,000

-

-

-

-

-

36,000
36,000

249,973

-

-

-

-

-

249,973

78,000
399,973

-

-

-

-

-

78,000
399,973

*

This amount consists of fees paid to Leydin Freyer Corporate Pty Ltd in respect of Company Secretarial and
accounting services.

C

Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for key management personnel are formalised in service agreements.
Details of these agreements are as follows:
Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Details:

Mr C Martin
Non-Executive Director
26 February 2013
(i) Mr Martin may resign from his position and thus terminate this contract by giving 6
months' written notice.
(ii) The Company may terminate this employment agreement by providing one
month's written notice.
(iii) The Company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious
misconduct has occurred. Where termination with cause occurs Mr Martin is only
entitled to that portion of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date of
termination.
(iv) On termination of the agreement Mr Martin will be entitled to be paid those
outstanding amounts owing to him up until the termination date.
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Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Details:

Ms M Leydin
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
1 January 2009 (renewed 17 February 2010)
(i) Ms Leydin may resign from her position and thus terminate this contract by giving
6 months' written notice.
(ii) The Company may terminate this employment agreement by providing 6 months'
written notice.
(iii) The Company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious
misconduct has occured. Where termination with cause occurs Ms Leydin is only
entitled to that portion of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date of
termination.
(iv) On termination of the agreement Ms Leydin will be entitled to be paid those
outstanding amounts owing to her up until the termination date.

Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Details:

Mr A Van Der Zwan
Executive Director
19 March 2013
(i) Mr Van Der Zwan may resign from his positions and thus terminate this contract
by giving 6 months' written notice.
(ii) The Company may terminate this employment agreement by providing one
month's written notice.
(iii) The Company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious
misconduct has occurred. Where termination with cause occurs Mr Van Der Zwan is
only entitled to that portion of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date of
termination.
(iv) On termination of the agreement Mr Van Der Zwan will be entitled to be paid
those outstanding amounts owing to him up until the termination date.

Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Details:

Mr J Hondris
Non-Executive Director
renewed 17 April 2013
(i) Mr Hondris may resign from his position and thus terminate this contract by giving
6 months' written notice.
(ii) The Company may terminate this employment agreement by providing one
month's written notice.
(iii) The Company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious
misconduct has occurred. Where termination with cause occurs Mr Hondris is only
entitled to that portion of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date of
termination.
(iv) On termination of the agreement Mr Hondris will be entitled to be paid those
outstanding amounts owing to him up until the termination date.

Key management personnel have no entitlement to termination payments in the event of removal for misconduct.
D

Share-based compensation

Issue of shares
There were no shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as part of compensation during the
year ended 30 June 2013.
Options
There were no options over ordinary shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as part of
compensation that were outstanding as at 30 June 2013.
There were no options over ordinary shares granted to or vested by directors and other key management personnel
as part of compensation during the year ended 30 June 2013.
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E

Additional information

The earnings of the consolidated entity for the five years to 30 June 2013 are summarised below:
2009
$
Revenue
Net profit/(loss) before tax
Net profit/(loss) after tax

2010
$

256,271
(346,128)
(346,128)

128,595
762,753
762,753

2011
$

2012
$

2013
$

79,915
(1,248,112)
(1,248,112)

40,184
(2,267,095)
(2,267,095)

12,759
(7,778,197)
(7,778,197)

The factors that are considered to affect total shareholders return ('TSR') are summarised below:
2009
Share price at end of year ($A)
Share price at start of year ($A)
Basic earnings per share (cents per share)

2010

0.24
0.03
(0.42)

0.03
0.03
0.92

2011
0.03
0.09
(1.51)

2012
0.09
0.02
(2.66)

2013
0.02
0.02
(7.08)

This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited.
Shares under option
There were no unissued ordinary shares of Argo Exploration Limited under option outstanding at the date of this
report.
Shares under performance rights
Unissued ordinary shares of Argo Exploration Limited under performance rights at the date of this report are as
follows:
Grant date

Expiry date

2 July 2013*
2 July 2013**
2 July 2013***
2 July 2013****

2 July 2018
2 July 2018
2 July 2018
2 July 2018

Exercise
price
$0.04
$0.05
$0.08
$0.10

Number
under rights
8,200,000
8,200,000
12,300,000
12,300,000
41,000,000

*

Class A Rights will vest where the Company's share price is equal to or greater than a 5 day Volume Weighted
Average Price of $0.035 (3 and a half cents) per share.
** Class B Rights will vest where the Company's share price is equal to or greater than a 5 day Volume Weighted
Average Price of $0.05 (5 cents) per share.
*** Class C Rights will vest where the Company's share price is equal to or greater than a 5 day Volume Weighted
Average Price of $0.075 (7 and a half cents) per share.
**** Class D Rights will vest where the Company's share price is equal to or greater than a 5 day Volume Weighted
Average Price of $0.10 (10 cents) per share.
No person entitled to exercise the performance rights had or has any right by virtue of the performance right to
participate in any share issue of the company or of any other body corporate.
Shares issued on the exercise of options
There were no shares of Argo Exploration Limited issued on the exercise of options during the year ended 30 June
2013 and up to the date of this report.
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Argo Exploration Limited
Directors' report
30 June 2013
Indemnity and insurance of officers
The company has indemnified the directors of the company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director, for which
they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith.
During the financial year, the company paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the directors of the company
against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure
of the nature of liability and the amount of the premium.
Indemnity and insurance of auditor
The company has not otherwise, during or since the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of
the company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor.
During the financial year, the company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the
company or any related entity.
Proceedings on behalf of the company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on
behalf of the company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking
responsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings.
Non-audit services
There were no non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor.
Officers of the company who are former audit partners of Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
There are no officers of the company who are former audit partners of Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd.
Auditor's independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as rquired under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set
out on page 7.
Auditor
Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act
2001.
On behalf of the directors

________________________________
Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan
Executive Director
30 September 2013
Melbourne
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Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
ACN 130 913 594
The Rialto, Level 30
525 Collins St
Melbourne Victoria 3000
GPO Box 4736
Melbourne Victoria 3001
T +61 3 8320 2222
F +61 3 8320 2200
E info.vic@au.gt.com
W www.grantthornton.com.au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
To the Directors of Argo Exploration Limited

In accordance with the requirements of section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, as lead
auditor for the audit of Argo Exploration Limited for the year ended 30 June 2013, I declare
that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
a

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 in relation to the audit; and

b

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

B. A. Mackenzie
Partner – Audit & Assurance
Melbourne, 30 September 2013

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant
Thornton Australia Ltd is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered
by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context
only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton’ may refer to Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. GTIL is not an Australian related entity to Grant Thornton
Australia Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liability is limited in those States where a current scheme applies.
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Argo Exploration Limited
Corporate Governance Statement
30 June 2013
The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) of Argo Exploration Limited (the ‘company’) is responsible for the corporate
governance of the consolidated entity. The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of the company on
behalf of the shareholders by whom they are elected and to whom they are accountable.
The table below summarises the company's compliance with the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Revised
Principles and Recommendations.
Principles and
Recommendations

Compliance

Comply

Principle 1 – Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
1.1

Establish the functions
reserved to the Board and
those delegated to manage
and disclose those
functions.

The Board is responsible for the overall
corporate governance of the company.

Complies.

The Board has adopted a Board charter that
formalises its roles and responsibilities and
defines the matters that are reserved for the
Board and specific matters that are delegated
to management.
The Board has adopted a Delegations of
Authority that sets limits of authority for senior
executives.
On appointment of a director, the company
issues a letter of appointment setting out the
terms and conditions of appointment to the
Board.

1.2

Disclose the process for
evaluating the performance
of senior executives.

The Board meets annually to review the
performance of executives. The senior
executives’ performance is assessed against
performance of the Company as a whole.

Complies.

1.3

Provide the information
indicated in Guide to
reporting on Principle 1.

A Board charter has been disclosed on the
company’s website and is summarised in this
Corporate Governance Statement.

Complies.

A performance evaluation process is included
in the Board Charter, which has been
disclosed on the company’s website and is
summarised in this Corporate Governance
Statement.

Complies.

Complies.

Principle 2 – Structure the Board to add value
2.1

A majority of the Board
should be independent
directors.

The majority of the Board’s directors are not
independent directors of the company.
Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan is an Executive
Director.
Mr Justin Hondris is not an independent NonExecutive Director.
Mr Chris Martin is not an independent Nonexecutive Director.

2.2

The chair should be an
independent director.

The Chairman is appointed at the
commencement of each Directors Meeting.
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Whilst the Board recognises
that it is desirable for the
majority of the Board to be an
Independent Directors, the
Company’s current size
dictates that this is the most
efficient mode of operation at
the current time. The Board
will review the appointment of
further Independent Directors
should the Company’s size
and growth warrant this.
Whilst the Board recognises
that it is desirable for the
Chairman to be an

Argo Exploration Limited
Corporate Governance Statement
30 June 2013
Principles and
Recommendations

Compliance

Comply
Independent Director, the
Company’s current size
dictates that this is the most
efficient mode of operation at
the current time. The Board
will review the appointment of
an Independent Chairperson
should the Company’s size
and growth warrant this.

2.3

The roles of chair and chief
executive officer should not
be exercised by the same
individual.

Whilst the Board recognises that it is desirable
for the chair and chief executive officer to not
be carried out by the same individual, it is
currently not practicable due to the size and
composition of the current Board.

For similar reasons
expressed in relation to
recommendation 2.2, the
existing arrangement is the
most efficient mode of
operation at the current time
for the Company’s size. The
Board will review the
appointment of a separate
Chairperson should the
Company’s size and growth
warrant this.

2.4

The Board should establish
a nomination committee.

The company has not established a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

It is not a Company policy to
have a nomination
committee, given the size and
scale of Argo Exploration
Limited. The role of a
nomination committee is
carried out by the full Board.
The full board considers the
appointment of new
Directors, on an informal
basis. The Board’s policy for
the appointment of new
Directors to the Board can be
accessed at
www.argoexploration.com.au.

2.5

Disclose the process for
evaluating the performance
of the Board, its
committees and individual
directors.

The company conducts the process for
evaluating the performance of the Board, its
committees and individual directors as outlined
in the Board Charter which is available on the
company’s website.

Complies.

The Board’s induction program provides
incoming directors with information that will
enable them to carry out their duties in the best
interests of the company. This includes
supporting ongoing education of directors for
the benefit of the company.
2.6

Provide the information
indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 2.

This information has been disclosed (where
applicable) in the directors’ report attached to
this Corporate Governance Statement.
A director is considered independent when he
substantially satisfies the test for
independence as set out in the ASX Corporate
Governance Recommendations.
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Corporate Governance Statement
30 June 2013
Principles and
Recommendations

Compliance

Comply

Members of the Board are able to take
independent professional advice at the
expense of the company.
Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan, Executive Director,
was appointed to the Board in March 2013.
Mr Justin Hondris, Non-Executive Director,
was appointed to the Board in July 2006.
Mr Chis Martin, Non-Executive Director, was
appointed to the Board in February 2013.
The Board has undertaken a review of the mix
of skills and experience on the Board in light of
the company’s principal activities and direction,
and has considered diversity in succession
planning. The Board considers the current mix
of skills and experience of members of the
Board and its senior management is sufficient
to meet the requirements of the company.
In accordance with the information suggested
in Guide to Reporting on Principle 2, the
company has disclosed full details of its
directors in the director’s report attached to this
Corporate Governance Statement. Other
disclosure material on the Structure of the
Board has been made available on the
company’s website.
Principle 3 – Promote ethical and responsible decision making
3.1

Establish a code of
conduct and disclose the
code or a summary of the
code.

The Board has adopted a code of conduct. The
code establishes a clear set of values that
emphasise a culture encompassing strong
corporate governance, sound business
practices and good ethical conduct.

Complies.

The code is available on the company’s
website.
3.2

Companies should
establish a policy
concerning diversity and
disclose the policy or a
summary of that policy.
The policy should include
requirements for the Board
to establish measurable
objectives for achieving
gender diversity and for the
Board to assess annually
both the objectives and
progress in achieving
them.

The Board has undertaken a review of the mix
of skills and experience on the Board in light of
the company’s principal activities and direction.
The Board has prepared a Diversity Policy that
considers the benefits of diversity, ways to
promote a culture of diversity, factors to be
taken into account in the selection process of
candidates for Board and senior management
positions in the company, education programs
to develop skills and experience in preparation
for Board and senior management positions,
processes to include review and appointment
of directors, and identify key measurable
diversity performance objectives for the Board,
CEO and senior management.
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Principles and
Recommendations

Compliance

Comply

3.3

Companies should disclose
in each annual report the
measurable objectives for
achieving gender diversity
set by the board in
accordance with the
diversity policy and
progress towards achieving
them.

The Company adopted a Diversity Policy
during the financial year and will report in each
annual report the measurable objectives for
achieving gender diversity set by the Board.

Complies

3.4

Companies should disclose
in each annual report the
proportion of women
employees in the whole
organisation, women in
senior executive positions
and women on the board.

The company will report, where appropriate,
the proportion of women employees and their
positions held within the company.

Complies

The current composition of the board is 3
Directors of which none are currently female.
The Company has two joint Company
Secretaries in which one is female and carries
out a senior management role.
The proportion of females in the company is
20% being 1 out of a total of 3 Directors and 2
senior management personnel, being 5 in total.

3.5

Provide the information
indicated in Guide to
reporting on Principle 3.

This information is available on the Company’s
website.

Complies

Principle 4 – Safeguard integrity in financial reporting
4.1

The Board should establish
an audit committee.

The Board has established an audit and risk
committee which operates under an audit and
risk committee charter to focus on issues
relevant to the integrity of the company’s
financial reporting.

Complies.

4.2

The audit committee
should be structured so
that it consists of only nonexecutive directors, a
majority of independent
directors, is chaired by an
independent chair who is
not chair of the Board and
have at least 3 members.

Members of the audit and risk committee are
Mr Justin Hondris (Chair) and Mr Chris Martin.
Mr Chris Martin is a Non-Executive Director
and is not chair of the Board. Mr Chris Martin is
not an independent non-executive Director.
The committee consists of two non-executive
directors.

The Committee only has 2
members due to the size of
the Board. To maintain
independence the Board
decided it wasn’t appropriate
to include an Executive
Director on the Audit
Committee in order to have
the 3 members.

4.3

The audit committee
should have a formal
charter.

The Board has adopted an audit and risk
charter.

Complies.

Provide the information
indicated in Guide to
reporting on Principle 4.

In accordance with the information suggested
in Guide to Reporting on Principle 4, this has
been disclosed in the directors’ report attached
to this Corporate Governance Statement and is

4.4

This charter is available on the company’s
website.
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Principles and
Recommendations

Compliance

Comply

summarised in this Corporate Governance
Statement.
The members of the audit and risk committee
are appointed by the Board and
recommendations from the committee are
presented to the Board for further discussion
and resolution.
The audit and risk committee held two
meetings during the period to the date of the
directors’ report and meets at least twice per
annum.
The audit and risk charter, and information on
procedures for the selection and appointment
of the external auditor, and for the rotation of
external audit engagement partners (which is
determined by the audit committee), is
available on the company’s website.
Principle 5 – Make timely and balanced disclosure
5.1

5.2

Establish written policies
designed to ensure
compliance with ASX
Listing Rules disclosure
requirements and to
ensure accountability at a
senior executive level for
that compliance and
disclose those policies or a
summary of those policies.

The company has adopted a continuous
disclosure policy, to ensure that it complies
with the continuous disclosure regime under
the ASX Listing Rules and the Corporations
Act 2001.

Provide the information
indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 5.

The company’s continuous disclosure policy is
available on the company’s website.

Complies.

This policy is available on the company’s
website.

Complies.

Principle 6 – Respect the rights of shareholders
6.1

6.2

Design a communications
policy for promoting
effective communication
with shareholders and
encouraging their
participation at general
meetings and disclose that
policy or a summary of that
policy.

The company has adopted a shareholder
communications policy. The company uses its
website (www.argoexploration.com.au), annual
report, market announcements, media
disclosures and webcasting to communicate
with its shareholders, as well as encourages
participation at general meetings.

Provide the information
indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 6.

The company’s shareholder communications
policy is available on the company’s website.

Complies.

This policy is available on the company’s
website.

21

Complies.

Argo Exploration Limited
Corporate Governance Statement
30 June 2013
Principle 7 – Recognise and manage risk
7.1

Establish policies for the
oversight and management
of material business risks
and disclose a summary of
these policies.

The company has adopted a risk management
statement within the audit and risk committee
charter. The audit and risk committee is
responsible for managing risk; however,
ultimate responsibility for risk oversight and
risk management rests with the Board.

Complies.

The audit and risk charter is available on the
company’s website and is summarised in this
Corporate Governance Statement.

7.2

The Board should require
management to design and
implement the risk
management and internal
control system to manage
the company’s material
business risks and report
to it on whether those risks
are being managed
effectively. The Board
should disclose that
management has reported
to it as to the effectiveness
of the company’s
management of its material
business risks.

The Board believes the risk management and
internal control systems designed and
implemented by the Directors and the Financial
Officer are adequate given the size and nature
of the Company’s activities. The Board
informally reviews and requests management
internal control.

Management has not formally
reported to the Board as to
the effectiveness of the
Company’s management of
its material business risks.
Given the nature and size of
the Company and the Board’s
ultimate responsibility to
manage the risks of the
Company this is not
considered critical. The
Company intends to develop
the risk reporting framework
into a detailed policy as its
operations continue to grow.

7.3

The Board should disclose
whether it has received
assurance from the chief
executive officer and chief
financial officer that the
declaration provided in
accordance with section
295A of the Corporations
Act is founded on a sound
system of risk
management and internal
control and that the system
is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material
respects in relation to the
financial reporting risks.

The Board has received a statement from the
chief executive officer and chief financial officer
that the declaration provided in accordance
with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001
is founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal control and that the
system is operating efficiently and effectively in
all material respects in relation to the financial
reporting risks.

Complies.

7.4

Provide the information
indicated in Guide to
reporting on Principle 7.

The Board has adopted an audit and risk
charter which includes a statement of the
company’s risk policies.

Complies.

This charter is available on the company’s
website and is summarised in this Corporate
Governance Statement.
The company has identified key risks within the
business and has received a statement of
assurance from the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer.
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Principle 8 – Remunerate fairly and responsibly
8.1

The Board should establish
a remuneration committee.

The Board has not established a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and has not
adopted a remuneration charter.

It is not a Company policy to
have a nomination
committee, given the size and
scale of Argo Exploration
Limited. The role of a
nomination committee is
carried out by the full Board.
The full board considers the
appointment of new
Directors, on an informal
basis. The Board’s policy for
the appointment of new
Directors to the Board can be
accessed at
www.argoexploration.com.au.

8.2

Clearly distinguish the
structure of non-executive
directors’ remuneration
from that of executive
directors and senior
executives.

The company complies with the guidelines for
executive remuneration packages and nonexecutive director remuneration.

Complies.

Provide the information
indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 8.

The information has been disclosed in the
Annual Report.

8.3

No senior executive is involved directly in
deciding their own remuneration.
Complies.

Argo Exploration Limited’s corporate governance practices were in place for the financial year ended 30 June 2013
and to the date of signing the directors’ report.
Various corporate governance practices are discussed within this statement. For further information on corporate
governance policies adopted by Argo Exploration Limited, refer to our website: www.argoexploration.com.au
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Argo Exploration Limited
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note

Revenue
Expenses
Corporate Expenses
Administration Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain/(loss) on fair value through profit and loss investments
Finance costs
Exploration costs written-off

5

12,759

40,184

6

(114,093)
(38,247)
(397,541)
(9,540)
1,405,933
(8,637,468)

(128,126)
(65,339)
(310,658)
(11,208)
(1,491,917)
(3,234)
(296,797)

(7,778,197)

(2,267,095)

6
6

Loss before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$

7

Loss after income tax expense for the year attributable to the owners of
Argo Exploration Limited

(7,778,197)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

(2,267,095)

-

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of
Argo Exploration Limited

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

29
29

-

(7,778,197)

(2,267,095)

Cents

Cents

(7.08)
(7.08)

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes
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Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2013

Note

Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other
Total current assets

8
9
10
11

211,766
29,276
2,118,906
9,483
2,369,431

665,727
30,625
712,973
9,017
1,418,342

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation
Total non-current assets

12
13

757
757

21,259
8,536,299
8,557,558

2,370,188

9,975,900

96,052
6,196
102,248

157,113
32,777
189,890

102,248

189,890

2,267,940

9,786,010

13,423,483
(11,155,543)

13,163,356
(3,377,346)

2,267,940

9,786,010

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Total current liabilities

14
15

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Issued capital
Accumulated losses

16

Total equity

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2011

Contributed
equity
$

Retained
profits
$

Total
equity
$

12,793,414

(1,110,251)

11,683,163

-

(2,267,095)

(2,267,095)

Loss after income tax
expense for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income
for the year

-

-

-

-

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Contributions of equity, net of
transaction costs (note 16)
Balance at 30 June 2012

369,942
-

-

-

Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2012

13,163,356

(3,377,346)

9,786,010

-

(7,778,197)

(7,778,197)

-

Total comprehensive income
for the year

-

-

-

-

260,127
-

369,942

Retained
profits
$

-

-

-

Contributed
equity
$

-

-

(2,267,095)

(3,377,346)

-

Balance at 30 June 2013

(2,267,095)

-

13,163,356

Loss after income tax
expense for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Contributions of equity, net of
transaction costs (note 16)

-

13,423,483

9,786,010
Total
equity
$

(7,778,197)

(7,778,197)

(11,155,543)

260,127
2,267,940

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Interest and other finance costs paid

Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$

(592,901)
12,759
-

(411,064)
40,184
(3,234)

Net cash used in operating activities

28

(580,142)

(374,114)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for exploration and evaluation

12
13

(101,169)

(1,336)
(462,007)

(101,169)

(463,343)

270,000
(9,873)
(32,777)

372,600
(2,659)
(8,698)

227,350

361,243

(453,961)
665,727

(476,214)
1,141,941

211,766

665,727

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Capital raising costs
Repayment of borrowings

16

Net cash from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

8

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2013
Note 1. General information
The financial report covers Argo Exploration Limited as a consolidated entity consisting of Argo Exploration Limited
and the entities it controlled. The financial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is Argo Exploration Limited's
functional and presentation currency.
The financial report consists of the financial statements, notes to the financial statements and the directors'
declaration.
Argo Exploration Limited is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its
registered office and principal place of business is:
Level 4,
100 Albert Road
South Melbourne VIC 3205
A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's operations and its principal activities are included in the
directors' report, which is not part of the financial report.
The financial report was authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of directors, on 30 September 2013.
The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial report.
Argo Exploration Limited is a for-profit entity for the purposes of preparing the financial statements.

Note 2. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted
The consolidated entity has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.
Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been
early adopted.
Any significant impact on the accounting policies of the consolidated entity from the adoption of these Accounting
Standards and Interpretations are disclosed below. The adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations
did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position of the consolidated entity.
The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most relevant to the consolidated entity:
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements as outlined in AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
The consolidated entity has adopted AASB 2011-9 amendments from 1 July 2012. The amendments requires
grouping together of items within other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they will eventually be
'recycled' to the profit and loss (reclassification adjustments). The change provides clarity about the nature of items
presented as other comprehensive income and the related tax presentation. The amendments also introduced the
term 'Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income' clarifying that there are two discrete sections, the
profit or loss section (or seperate statement of profit or loss) and other comprehensive income section.
Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001, as
appropriate for for-profit oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB').
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Notes to the financial statements
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Note 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, where applicable, the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
investment properties, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and derivative financial instruments.
Critical accounting estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the consolidated entity's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
Going Concern
The financial report has been prepared on the going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business
activities and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The going concern of
the consolidated entity is dependent upon it maintaining sufficient funds for its operations and commitments. The
Directors continue to monitor the ongoing funding requirements of the consolidated entity. The Directors are confident
that sufficient funds can be secured if required by a combination of capital raising and sale of assets to enable the
consolidated entity to continue as a going concern and as such are of the opinion that the financial report has been
appropriately prepared on a going concern basis.
The Company also has the option to liquidate its position in Pantheon Resources Plc if there is insufficient funds
being generated through capital raisings. As at 30 June 2013 the Company’s investment in Pantheon Resources Plc
was carried at the market rate $2,118,906 (2012: $712,973). As at 25 September 2013, the Company's investment in
Pantheon Resources Plc has increased significantly due to an increase in the share price and was approximately
$2,639,618.
Parent entity information
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the consolidated
entity only. Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 24.
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Argo Exploration
Limited ('company' or 'parent entity') as at 30 June 2013 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended.
Argo Exploration Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial statements as the
'consolidated entity'.
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The effects of
potential exercisable voting rights are considered when assessing whether control exists. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity.
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Refer to the 'business
combinations' accounting policy for further details. A change in ownership interest, without the loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration transferred and the book
value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable to the parent.
Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities
and non-controlling interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity.
The consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment
retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss.
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Operating segments
Operating segments are presented using the 'management approach', where the information presented is on the
same basis as the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM'). The CODM is
responsible for the allocation of resources to operating segments and assessing their performance.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the consolidated entity and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Interest
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
Income tax
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when
the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted,
except for:
●
When the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting nor taxable profits; or
●
When the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or
interests in joint ventures, and the timing of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed each reporting date. Deferred
tax assets recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available
for the carrying amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there are future taxable profits available to recover the asset.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same
taxable authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entity's which intend to settle simultaneously.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within
30 days.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is raised when
there is objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are
considered indicators that the trade receivable may be impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment.
Investments and other financial assets
Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of
the initial measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is determined based
on the purpose of the acquisition and subsequent reclassification to other categories is restricted. The fair values of
quoted investments are based on current bid prices. For unlisted investments, the consolidated entity establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the consolidated entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either: i) held for trading, where they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the short-term with an intention of making a profit; or ii) designated as such upon initial
recognition, where they are managed on a fair value basis or to eliminate or significantly reduce an accounting
mismatch. Except for effective hedging instruments, derivatives are also categorised as fair value through profit or
loss. Fair value movements are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets
The consolidated entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or obligor; a breach of contract such as default or delinquency in payments; the lender granting to a borrower
concessions due to economic or legal reasons that the lender would not otherwise do; it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; the disappearance of an active market for the
financial asset; or observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment allowance for financial assets carried at cost is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return
for similar financial assets.

31

Argo Exploration Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2013
Note 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment (excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows:
Plant and equipment

2-4 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit
to the consolidated entity. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to
profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus reserve relating to the item disposed of is transferred directly to retained profits.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all
the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased assets, and operating leases, under which the lessor
effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits.
Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the leased assets, or if
lower, the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated between the principal
component of the lease liability and the finance costs, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.
Leased assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the consolidated entity will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.
Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straightline basis over the term of the lease.
Exploration and evaluation assets
Exploration and evaluation expenditure in relation to separate areas of interest for which rights of tenure are current is
carried forward as an asset in the statement of financial position where it is expected that the expenditure will be
recovered through the successful development and exploitation of an area of interest, or by its sale; or exploration
activities are continuing in an area and activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable estimate of the
existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves. Where a project or an area of interest has been
abandoned, the expenditure incurred thereon is written off in the year in which the decision is made.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the
asset or cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are
grouped together to form a cash-generating unit.
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Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the
financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not
discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Borrowings
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Where there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,
the loans or borrowings are classified as non-current.
Finance costs
Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred, including:
- interest on short-term and long-term borrowings
- interest on finance leases
Issued capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Argo Exploration Limited,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
financial year.
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Goods and Services Tax ('GST') and other similar taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of
financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax
authority.
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New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June
2013. The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and
Interpretations, most relevant to the consolidated entity, are set out below.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments, 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9, 20107 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 and 2012-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
This standard and its consequential amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015 and completes phase I of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39 (being the international equivalent to
AASB 139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'). This standard introduces new classification and
measurement models for financial assets, using a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is
measured at amortised cost or fair value. The accounting for financial liabilities continues to be classified and
measured in accordance with AASB 139, with one exception, being that the portion of a change of fair value relating
to the entity’s own credit risk is to be presented in other comprehensive income unless it would create an accounting
mismatch. The consolidated entity will adopt this standard from 1 July 2015 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be
assessed by the consolidated entity.
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The standard has a new
definition of 'control'. Control exists when the reporting entity is exposed, or has the rights, to variable returns (e.g.
dividends, remuneration, returns that are not available to other interest holders including losses) from its involvement
with another entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 'power' over that other entity. A reporting entity
has power when it has rights (e.g. voting rights, potential voting rights, rights to appoint key management, decision
making rights, kick out rights) that give it the current ability to direct the activities that significantly affect the investee’s
returns (e.g. operating policies, capital decisions, appointment of key management). The consolidated entity will not
only have to consider its holdings and rights but also the holdings and rights of other shareholders in order to
determine whether it has the necessary power for consolidation purposes. The adoption of this standard from 1 July
2013 will not have a material impact on the consolidated entity.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The standard defines
which entities qualify as joint ventures and removes the option to account for joint ventures using proportional
consolidation. Joint ventures, where the parties to the agreement have the rights to the net assets will use equity
accounting. Joint operations, where the parties to the agreements have the rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities will account for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses separately, account for the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses in accordance with Standards applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. The adoption of this standard from 1 July 2013 will not have a material impact on the consolidated entity.
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. It contains the entire
disclosure requirement associated with other entities, being subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The
disclosure requirements have been significantly enhanced when compared to the disclosures previously located in
AASB 127 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements', AASB 128 'Investments in Associates', AASB 131
'Interests in Joint Ventures' and Interpretation 112 'Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities'. The adoption of this
standard from 1 July 2013 will significantly increase the amount of disclosures required to be given by the
consolidated entity such as significant judgements and assumptions made in determining whether it has a controlling
or non-controlling interest in another entity and the type of non-controlling interest and the nature and risks involved.
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AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 13
This standard and its consequential amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. The standard provides a single robust measurement framework, with clear measurement objectives,
for measuring fair value using the 'exit price' and it provides guidance on measuring fair value when a market
becomes less active. The 'highest and best use' approach would be used to measure assets whereas liabilities would
be based on transfer value. As the standard does not introduce any new requirements for the use of fair value, its
impact on adoption by the consolidated entity from 1 July 2013 should be minimal, although there will be increased
disclosures where fair value is used.
Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine and AASB 2011-12 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from Interpretation 20
This interpretation and its consequential amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 The Interpretation clarifies when production stripping costs should lead to the recognition of an asset
and how that asset should be initially and subsequently measured. The Interpretation only deals with waste removal
costs that are incurred in surface mining activities during the production phase of the mine. The adoption of the
interpretation and the amendments from 1 July 2013 will not have a material impact on the consolidated entity.

Note 3. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and
estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its
judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations
of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to
the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below.
Estimation of useful lives of assets
The consolidated entity determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold will be written off or written down.
Income tax
The consolidated entity is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during
the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The consolidated entity
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on the consolidated entity’s current understanding of the
tax law. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the carrying amounts, such differences will
impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
Recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the consolidated entity considers it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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Lease make good provision
A provision has been made for the present value of anticipated costs for future restoration of leased premises. The
provision includes future cost estimates associated with closure of the premises. The calculation of this provision
requires assumptions such as application of closure dates and cost estimates. The provision recognised for each site
is periodically reviewed and updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time. Changes to the
estimated future costs for sites are recognised in the statement of financial position by adjusting the asset and the
provision. Reductions in the provision that exceed the carrying amount of the asset will be recognised in profit or loss.

Note 4. Operating segments
Identification of reportable operating segments
The Company operated predominately as an explorer for base precious metals, with the emphasis on copper, gold
and uranium mineralisation within Australia.
AASB 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about the components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment
and to assess its performance. The board reviews the Company as a whole in the business segment of mineral
exploration within Australia.

Note 5. Revenue
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Interest revenue

12,759

40,184

Note 6. Expenses
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Loss before income tax includes the following specific
expenses:
Depreciation
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles under lease
Total depreciation

-

-

Amortisation
Software
Total depreciation and amortisation

-

Adjustment of fair value through profit and loss
Gain/(loss) on fair value through profit and loss
investments

36

-

535
9,005

44
10,806

9,540

10,850

-

358

9,540

11,208

1,405,933

(1,491,917)
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Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Finance costs
Interest on obligations under finance leases

-

3,234

Note 7. Income tax expense
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense and tax at
the statutory rate
Loss before income tax expense

(7,778,197)

(2,267,095)

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 30%

(2,333,459)

(680,129)

3,289
(421,780)

447,575

(2,751,950)
200,826
2,551,124

(232,554)
288,862
(56,308)

Tax effect amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in
calculating taxable income:
Disposal of leased asset
Fair value adjustments
Current year tax losses not recognised
Current year temporary differences not recognised
Income tax expense

-

-

-

-

-

-

Tax losses not recognised
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has
been recognised

8,373,337

9,042,756

Potential tax benefit @ 30%

2,512,001

2,712,827

The above potential tax benefit for tax losses has not been recognised in the statement of financial position. These
tax losses can only be utilised in the future if the continuity of ownership test is passed, or failing that, the same
business test is passed.
The benefit of these losses has not been brought to account at 30 June 2013 because the Directors do no believe it is
appropriate to regard realisaton of the deferred tax asset as being probable at this point in time or that there are
sufficient deferred tax liabilities to offset these losses. These tax losses are also subject to final determination by the
Taxation authorities when the Group derives taxable income. The benefit will only be realised if:
(i) the consolidated entity derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the
benefit from the deductions for the losses to be realised;
(ii) the consolidated entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by law; and
(iii) no change in tax legislation adversely affects the consolidated entity in realising the benefits from deducting the
losses.
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Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Cash at bank

211,766

665,727

Note 9. Current assets - trade and other receivables
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Trade receivables
Interest receivable
GST receivable
-

-

11,000
406
17,870

343
844
29,438

29,276

30,625

Due to the short term nature of the receivables their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. No
collateral or security is held. No interest is charged on the receivables. The consolidated entity has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all receivables are received within the credit timeframe.

Note 10. Current assets - financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Shares in listed entity

2,118,906

712,973

712,973
1,405,933
-

2,204,890
(1,491,917)

2,118,906

712,973

Reconciliation
Reconciliation of the fair values at the beginning and end
of the current and previous financial year are set out
Opening fair value
Revaluation increments
Revaluation decrements
Closing fair value

-

-

Refer to note 18 for further information on financial instruments.

Note 11. Current assets - other
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Prepayments

9,483

38
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Note 12. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Plant and equipment - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

-

Motor vehicles under lease
Less: Accumulated depreciation

-

32,529
(31,772)
757

-

-

-

-

-

757

32,529
(31,237)
1,292
46,982
(27,015)
19,967
21,259

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set
out below:

$

$

Plant &
Equipment
$

$

Leased
Assets
$

Total
$

Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2011
Additions
Depreciation expense

-

-

-

1,336
(44)

30,773
(10,806)

30,773
1,336
(10,850)

Balance at 30 June 2012
Disposals
Depreciation expense

-

-

-

1,292
(535)

19,967
(10,962)
(9,005)

21,259
(10,962)
(9,540)

Balance at 30 June 2013

-

-

-

757

-

757

Note 13. Non-current assets - exploration and evaluation
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Costs carried forward - exploration and evaluation
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-

-

-

8,536,299
8,536,299

-

-

-

8,536,299
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Note 13. Non-current assets - exploration and evaluation (continued)
Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set
out below:

$
Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2011
Additions
Impairment of assets

$
-

$
-

Exploration &
Evaluation
$

$
-

-

Balance at 30 June 2012
Additions
Write off of assets

-

Balance at 30 June 2013

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
$

8,371,089
462,007
(296,797)

8,371,089
462,007
(296,797)

8,536,299
101,169
(8,637,468)

8,536,299
101,169
(8,637,468)

-

-

During the year tenement licences, Intercept Hill (EL 4164) and Toondulya (EL 4284) were relinquished. All
exploration expenditure capitalised has been written off in relation to these projects as at 30 June 2013.

Note 14. Current liabilities - trade and other payables
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Trade payables
Sundry payables and accrued expenses
-

-

64,274
31,778

135,113
22,000

96,052

157,113

Refer to note 18 for further information on financial instruments.
The average credit period on purchases is 30 days. Due to the short term nature of the payables their carrying value
is assumed to approximate their fair value. No interest is charged on the trade payables. The consolidated entity has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Note 15. Current liabilities - borrowings
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Loan - Insurance
Lease liability
-
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-

6,196
-

32,777

6,196

32,777
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Note 16. Equity - issued capital
Consolidated
2013
2012
Shares
Shares
Ordinary shares - fully paid

125,220,000

95,220,000

Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
13,423,483

13,163,356

Movements in ordinary share capital
Details

Date

No of shares Issue price

Balance
Share issue
Less cost of capital raising

1 July 2011
12 April 2012

82,800,000
12,420,000

Balance
Share issue
Less cost of capital raising

30 June 2012
2 January 2013

95,220,000
30,000,000
-

Balance

30 June 2013

$

$0.03

12,793,414
372,600
(2,658)

$0.01

13,163,356
270,000
(9,873)

125,220,000

13,423,483

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value
and the company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital.
On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll
each share shall have one vote.
Capital risk management
The consolidated entity's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the consolidated entity may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
The consolidated entity would look to raise capital when an opportunity to invest in a business or company was seen
as value adding relative to the current parent entity's share price at the time of the investment. The consolidated entity
is not actively pursuing additional investments in the short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing
businesses in order to maximise synergies.
The consolidated entity is subject to certain financing arrangements covenants and meeting these are given priority in
all capital risk management decisions. There have been no events of default on the financing arrangements during
the financial year.
The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 30 June 2012 Annual Report.

Note 17. Equity - dividends
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.
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Note 18. Financial instruments
Financial risk management objectives
The consolidated entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The consolidated entity's overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity uses different methods to measure different types of
risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate risk.
Risk management is carried out by senior finance executives ('finance') under policies approved by the Board of
Directors ('the Board'). These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure of the consolidated entity
and appropriate procedures, controls and risk limits. Finance identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks within
the consolidated entity's operating units. Finance reports to the Board on a monthly basis.
Market risk
Foreign currency risk
The consolidated entity undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and are exposed to foreign
currency risk through foreign exchange rate fluctuations.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity
analysis and cash flow forecasting.
Price risk
The consolidated entity is exposed to price risk in relation to the shares that it holds in another listed entity.

Consolidated - 2013
Shares in listed entity

Consolidated - 2012
Shares in listed entity

Average price increase
Effect on
profit
Effect on
% change
before tax
equity
70%

1,483,234

1,483,234

Average price increase
Effect on
profit
Effect on
before tax
% change
equity
70%

499,081

Average price decrease
Effect on
profit
Effect on
% change
before tax
equity
70%

(1,483,234)

(1,483,234)

Average price decrease
Effect on
profit
Effect on
before tax
% change
equity

499,081

70%

(499,081)

(499,081)

Interest rate risk
As at the reporting date, the consolidated entity had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:
2013
Weighted
average
interest rate
%
Consolidated
Cash at bank

2.75

Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk

2012

Balance
$
211,766
211,766

Weighted
average
interest rate
%
4.36

Balance
$
665,727
665,727

An decrease in interest rates of 20% or 0.55 percentage points would have a favourable/adverse effect on profit
before tax of $1,165 per annum. The percentage is based on the expected volatility of interest rates using market
data and analysis forecasts.
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Note 18. Financial instruments (continued)
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity has a strict code of credit, including obtaining agency credit
information, confirming references and setting appropriate credit limits. The consolidated entity obtains guarantees
where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the
statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The consolidated entity does not hold any
collateral.
Liquidity risk
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the consolidated entity to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and
cash equivalents) and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and
payable.
The consolidated entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing
facilities by continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.
Remaining contractual maturities
The following tables detail the consolidated entity's remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the financial liabilities are required to be paid. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows
disclosed as remaining contractual maturities and therefore these totals may differ from their carrying amount in the
statement of financial position.

Consolidated - 2013
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade payables
Total non-derivatives

Consolidated - 2012
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade payables
Total non-derivatives

Weighted
average
interest rate
%
Weighted
average
interest rate
%
-

1 year or
less
$
96,052
96,052
1 year or
less
$
157,113
157,113

Between 1
and 2 years
$

Between 2
and 5 years
$

-

-

Between 1
and 2 years
$

Between 2
and 5 years
$

-

-

Over 5 years
$
-

Over 5 years
$
-

Remaining
contractual
maturities
$
96,052
96,052
Remaining
contractual
maturities
$
157,113
157,113

The cash flows in the maturity analysis above are not expected to occur significantly earlier than contractually
disclosed above.
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Note 18. Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments
The following tables detail the consolidated entity's fair values of financial instruments categorised by the following
levels:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
Level 1
$

Consolidated - 2013

Assets
Shares in listed entities
Total assets

Level 2
$

2,118,906
2,118,906
Level 1
$

Consolidated - 2012

Assets
Shares in listed entities
Total assets

Level 3
$
-

Level 2
$

712,973
712,973

Total
$
-

Level 3
$
-

2,118,906
2,118,906
Total
$

-

712,973
712,973

There were no transfers between levels during the financial year.
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value. The carrying amounts of
trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. The
fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the remaining contractual maturities at the current market
interest rate that is available for similar financial instruments.

Note 19. Key management personnel disclosures
Directors
The following persons were directors of Argo Exploration Limited during the financial year:
(resigned 19 March 2013)

Dr H Herbert (Managing Director and Chairman)
Mr J Hondris (Non-Executive Director)
Ms M Bird (Non-Executive Director)
Mr A Van Der Zwan (Executive Director)
Mr C Martin (Non-Executive Director)

(resigned 26 February 2013)
(appointed 19 March 2013)
(appointed 26 February 2013)

Other key management personnel
The following persons also had the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major
activities of the consolidated entity, directly or indirectly, during the financial year:
Ms M Leydin (Joint Company Secretary)
Mr J Mouchacca (Joint Company Secretary)

(appointed 10 July 2012)
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Note 19. Key management personnel disclosures (continued)
Compensation
The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the
consolidated entity is set out below:
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Short-term employee benefits
Termination benefits
-

-

415,769
74,498

399,973
-

490,267

399,973

Shareholding
The number of shares in the parent entity held during the financial year by each director and other members of key
management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally related parties, is set out below:

2013
Ordinary shares
Mr A Van Der Zwan*
Mr J Hondris
Mr C Martin*
Dr H Herbert**
Ms M Bird***

Balance at
the start of
the year
3,400,000
7,000,000
100,000
10,500,000

Received
as part of
remuneration
-

Additions
-

Disposals/
other

Balance at
the end of
the year

5,000,000
10,820,000
(7,000,000)
(100,000)
8,720,000

5,000,000
3,400,000
10,820,000
19,220,000

* Mr A Van Der Zwan was appointed as a Director of the Company on 19 March 2013, and Mr C Martin
appointed as a Director of the Company on 26 February 2013.
** Dr H Herbert resigned as a Director of the Company on 19 March 2013.
*** Ms M Bird resigned as a Director of the Company on 26 February 2013.

2012
Ordinary shares
Dr H Herbert
Mr J Hondris
Ms M Bird

Balance at
the start of
the year
7,000,000
3,400,000
100,000
10,500,000

Related party transactions
Related party transactions are set out in note 23.
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Received
as part of
remuneration
-

Additions

Disposals/
other

Balance at
the end of
the year

-

-

7,000,000
3,400,000
100,000
10,500,000

Argo Exploration Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2013
Note 20. Remuneration of auditors
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Grant Thornton Audit Pty
Ltd, the auditor of the company:
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Audit services - Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
Audit or review of the financial statements

31,000

35,000

Note 21. Contingent liabilities
The consolidated entity does not have any contingent liabilities at reporting date.

Note 22. Commitments
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Lease commitments - finance
Committed at the reporting date and recognised as
liabilities, payable:
Within one year

-

33,869

Total commitment
Less: Future finance charges

-

-

-

33,869
(1,092)

Net commitment recognised as liabilities

-

-

-

32,777

Representing:
Lease liability - current (note 15)

-

32,777

Exploration Tenements - Commitments for Expenditure
Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as
liabilities, payable:
Within one year
One to five years

-

160,607
6,160

-

166,767

-

-

Exploration Tenements - Commitments for expenditure
In order to maintain current rights of tenure to exploration tenements, the Company and consolidated entity are
required to outlay rentals and to meet the minimum expenditure requirements of the Mineral Resources Authority.
Minimum expenditure committments may be subject to renegotiation and with approval may otherwise be avoided by
sale, farm out, or relinquishment. These obligations are not recorded in the financial statements.
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Note 23. Related party transactions
Parent entity
Argo Exploration Limited is the parent entity.
Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 25.
Key management personnel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 19 and the remuneration report in the directors'
report.
Transactions with related parties
Transactions with Director Related Entities
There were no transactions with Director related entities during the financial year, other than:
A Director of the Company, Mr Justin Hondris, is also an Executive Director of AIM-listed Pantheon Resources PLC
(“Pantheon” AIM Code: PANR). The Company acquired a strategic shareholding in Pantheon and became the largest
shareholder during the prior reporting period ended 30 June 2012. Mr Hondris has been excluded from all decisions,
analysis and voting on the acquisition of the investment in Pantheon and will continue to be excluded from decisions
in the future. The investment comprised 7 million shares at £0.1325 per share for a total of £927,500.
Mr Justin Hondris currently holds 760,000 ordinary shares in Pantheon Resources Plc, representing a 0.7% holding of
the Company’s issued capital.
Receivable from and payable to related parties
There were no trade receivables from or trade payables to related parties at the current and previous reporting date.
Loans to/from related parties
There were no loans to or from related parties at the current and previous reporting date.
Terms and conditions
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

Note 24. Parent entity information
Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity.
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Parent
2013
$

2012
$

Loss after income tax

(7,907,760)

(2,267,095)

Total comprehensive income

(7,907,760)

(2,267,095)
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Note 24. Parent entity information (continued)
Statement of financial position
Parent
2013
$

2012
$

Total current assets

2,369,428

1,418,240

Total assets

2,891,986

10,497,698

Total current liabilities

624,046

582,125

Total liabilities

624,046

582,125

13,423,483
(11,155,543)

13,163,356
(3,247,783)

2,267,940

9,915,573

Equity
Issued capital
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries
The parent entity had no guarantees in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.
Contingent liabilities
The parent entity had no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.
Argo Exploration Limited has provided a deed of cross guarantee under Class Order 98/1418 made by ASIC to
Olympic Resources Limited as per the signed deed between the two entities dated 1 June 2009.
The consolidated disclosures made in relation to gurantees, contingent liabilities and capital commitments all relate to
the parent, and therefore it is not necessary to disclose them separately.
Capital commitments - Property, plant and equipment
Refer to Note 22 for details of capital commitments. All disclosed commitements relate to the parent entity.
Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in note 2,
except for the following:
●
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment.
●
Investments in associates are accounted for at cost, less any impairment.
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Note 25. Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 2:

Name of entity

Country of
incorporation

Olympic Resources Limited *
Athena Mines Pty Ltd

Australia
Australia

*

Equity holding
2013
2012
%
%
100.00
100.00

100.00
100.00

The wholly-owned subsidary has entered into a deed of cross guarantee with Argo Exploration Limited purusant
to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 and is relieved from the requirements to prepare and lodge an audited financial
report. The deed of cross guarantee was signed on 1 June 2009.

Note 26. Deed of cross guarantee
The following entities are party to a deed of cross guarantee under which each company guarantees the debts of the
others:
Argo Exploration Limited
Olympic Resources Limited
By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial
report and directors' report under Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) issued by the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission ('ASIC').
The above companies represent a 'Closed Group' for the purposes of the Class Order, and as there are no other
parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Argo Exploration Limited, they also represent the
'Extended Closed Group'.
The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of financial position are substantially
the same as the consolidated entity and therefore have not been separately disclosed.

Note 27. Events after the reporting period
On 3 July 2013, 41,000,000 Unlisted Performance Rights were issued to Directors and consultants of the Company
under the condition of share price hurdles in accordance with the Performance rights terms, as approved at the
general meeting of shareholders on 13 June 2013.
On 19 July 2013 the Company advised that exploration licence areas; Intercept Hill EL4164, and Toondulya EL4284
have now been relinquished by the Company.
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2013 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect the consolidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs
in future financial years.
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Note 28. Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash used in operating activities
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Loss after income tax expense for the year

-

-

(7,778,197)

(2,267,095)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Disposal of asset
Fair value adjustment for fair value investments through
profit and loss
Exploration costs written-off

9,540
10,962

11,208
-

(1,405,934)
8,637,468

1,491,917
296,797

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

1,350
(466)
(54,865)

(3,296)
(1,510)
97,865

(580,142)

(374,114)

Net cash used in operating activities

-

-

Note 29. Earnings per share
Consolidated
2013
2012
$
$
Loss after income tax attributable to the owners of Argo Exploration Limited

(7,778,197)

(2,267,095)

Number

Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per
share

109,892,131

85,352,055

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per
share

109,892,131

85,352,055

Cents
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

(7.08)
(7.08)
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Cents
(2.66)
(2.66)

Argo Exploration Limited
Directors' declaration
In the directors' opinion:
●

the attached financial statements and notes thereto comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting
Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;

●

the attached financial statements and notes thereto comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 2 to the financial statements;

●

the attached financial statements and notes thereto give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's
financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date;

●

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable; and

●

at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Extended
Closed Group will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by
virtue of the deed of cross guarantee described in note 26 to the financial statements.

The directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
On behalf of the directors

________________________________
Mr Andrew Van Der Zwan
Executive Director
30 September 2013
Melbourne
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Argo Exploration Limited
Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Argo Exploration Limited (the
“Company”), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss statement and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors’ declaration of the
consolidated entity comprising the Company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end
or from time to time during the financial year.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 The Directors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. The Directors also state, in the notes to the financial report, in accordance with
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, the financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards
require us to comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant
Thornton Australia Ltd is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered
by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context
only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton’ may refer to Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. GTIL is not an Australian related entity to Grant Thornton
Australia Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liability is limited in those States where a current scheme applies.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.
Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion:
a

b

the financial report of Argo Exploration Limited is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:
i

giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at
30 June 2013 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii

complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Material uncertainty regarding going concern

Without modification to the audit opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the
following matter. As a result of matters described in Note 2 in the annual financial report
the Company has incurred a net loss of $7,778,197 and net operating cash outflows of
$580,142 during the year ended 30 June 2013. This condition, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 2, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether it will
realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the
amounts stated in the financial statements.
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Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 10 to 14 of the directors’ report
for the year ended 30 June 2013. The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of
the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration
report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.
Auditor’s opinion on the remuneration report

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Argo Exploration Limited for the year ended
30 June 2013, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

B. A. Mackenzie
Partner - Audit & Assurance
Melbourne, 30 September 2013
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The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 11 September 2013.
Distribution of equitable securities
Analysis of number of equitable security holders by size of holding:
Number
of holders
of ordinary
shares
1 to 1,000
1,001 to 5,000
5,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 and over

15
91
122
353
114
695

Holding less than a marketable parcel

308

Equity security holders
Twenty largest quoted equity security holders
The names of the twenty largest security holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:
Ordinary shares
% of total
shares
Number held
issued
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited
Hawthorn Grove Investments Pty Ltd
Mr Hugh Herbert
Octopi Enterprises Pty Ltd
Mr Brendan William Jesser + Ms Edwina Kate Aikman <Jesser Super Fund A/C>
Mrs Kathryn Valerie Van Der Zwan <Harleston Family A/C>
Ausepen Pty Ltd
Cornwall Development Corporation
Mr Steven Brent Hutton + Mrs Giuliana Hutton <Hutton Retirement Fund A/C>
Bushline Pty Ltd <Hutton Family A/C>
Yarra Management Pty Ltd <The Yarra A/C>
Allua Holdings Pty Ltd <The Drg A/C>
Edna Securities Pty Ltd <Warren Gelfand Psf A/C>
Eiroz Investment Corporation Pty Ltd
Rojul Nominees Pty Ltd <R R Martin Super Fund A/C>
Mr Francesco Cusmano
Robert Julian Hafner Pty Ltd <Hafner Super Fund A/C>
Select Yachts Pty Ltd
Mr Sang Nguyen
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14,763,489
9,939,504
9,000,000
7,000,000
5,763,500
5,000,000
5,000,000
3,800,000
3,400,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,700,000
1,634,426
1,500,000
1,350,000
1,300,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

11.79
7.94
7.19
5.59
4.60
3.99
3.99
3.03
2.72
2.40
2.40
2.00
1.60
1.36
1.31
1.20
1.08
1.04
0.80
0.80

83,650,919

66.83

Argo Exploration Limited
Shareholder information
30 June 2013
Unquoted equity securities
Number
on issue
Performance rights

41,000,000

Number
of holders
5

Substantial holders
Substantial holders in the company are set out below:
Ordinary shares
% of total
shares
Number held
issued
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited
Hawthorn Grove Investments Pty Ltd
Mr Hugh Herbert

14,763,489
9,939,504
9,000,000
7,000,000

11.79
7.94
7.19
5.59

Voting rights
The voting rights attached to ordinary shares are set out below:
Ordinary shares
On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll
each share shall have one vote.
There are no other classes of equity securities.
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